# Comparison of ANZSIC 2006 with proposed reviewed ISIC - by ANZSIC Division (Draft)

## Contents

ANZSIC Division A Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing	2
ANZSIC Division B Mining	3
ANZSIC Division C Manufacturing	4
ANZSIC Division D Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services	7
ANZSIC Division E Construction	8
ANZSIC Division F Wholesale trade	9
ANZSIC Division G Retail	10
ANZSIC Division H Accommodation and Food services	11
ANZSIC Division I Transport, Postal and Warehousing	12
ANZSIC Division J Information Media and Telecommunications	13
ANZSIC Division K Finance and Insurance Services	14
ANZSIC Division L Renting, Hiring and Real Estate Services	15
ANZSIC Division M Professional, Scientific and Technical Services	16
ANZSIC Division N Administrative and Support Services	17
ANZSIC Division 0 Public Administration and Safety	18
ANZSIC Division P Education and Training	19
ANZSIC Division Q Health Care and Social Assistance	20
ANZSIC Division R Arts and Recreation Services	21
AN7SIC Division S Other Services	22

## ANZSIC Division A Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

ANZSIC Division A *Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing* is mainly in ISIC Section A *Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing*. ISIC differs from ANZSIC mainly in relation to how agricultural industries are broken down at the ISIC 3 digit Group level e.g. perennial and non-perennial. ANZSIC's breakdown is based on the Australian and NZ economy and the importance of these industries therefore has more industries identified at the ANZSIC 2 digit sub-division level resulting in more classes at lower levels.

ANZSIC 06 Subdivision *Support services to agriculture, forestry and fishing* don't get their own subdivision in ISIC but they do in ANZSIC 06.

ISIC Section A activities not in ANZSIC Division A:

- Forest fire fighting is classified to ANZSIC Class 7713 Fire Protection and Other Emergency Services
- Forest Management is classified to ANZSIC Class 6962 Management Advice and Related Consulting Services

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
A Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing	A Agriculture, forestry and fishing
01 Agriculture	01 Crop and animal production, hunting and
02 Aquaculture	related service activities
03 Forestry and Logging	
04 Fishing, Hunting and Trapping	02 Forestry and logging
05 Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing Support	
Services	03 Fishing and aquaculture

## **ANZSIC Division B Mining**

ANZSIC Division B *Mining* is mainly in ISIC Section B *Mining and Quarrying*. ISIC differs from ANZSIC mainly in relation to how mining industries are broken down at the class level. ANZSIC's breakdown is based on the importance of the mining industry in Australia and New Zealand, therefore has more industries identified.

A significant difference at class level relates to liquification of Natural Gas. ISIC either puts this activity in in ISIC Group 091 Support activities for petroleum and natural gas extraction or Class 5221 Service activities incidental to land transportation depending on whether it is done at the mine site or not. ANZSIC doesn't distinguish the difference and classifies LNG production to ANZSIC Subdivision 07 Oil and Gas Extraction.

ISIC Section B activities not in ANZSIC Division B:

- Mineral grading is classified to ANZSIC Class 6999 *Other Professional, Scientific and Technical Services*
- Oil and gas field firefighting services is classified to ANZSIC Class 7713 Fire Protection and Other Emergency Services

ANZSIC 2006	ISIC rev 5
B Mining	B Mining and quarrying
06 Coal Mining	05 Mining of coal and lignite
	06 Extraction of crude petroleum and natural
07 Oil and Gas Extraction	gas
	07 Mining of metal ores
08 Metal Ore Mining	08 Other mining and quarrying
09 Non-Metallic Mineral Mining and Quarrying	09 Mining support service activities
10 Exploration and Other Mining Support	
Services	

## **ANZSIC Division C Manufacturing**

ANZSIC Division C *Manufacturing* is mainly in ISIC Section C *Manufacturing*. Manufacturing in ISIC follows the same premise as ANZSIC. Manufacturing involves transformation of goods into new products. ISIC incorporates a different more detailed breakdown and also includes other additional activities i.e. extra repair and installation services relating to capital (only) goods (ISIC Division 33). Other minor differences relate to the scope of manufacturing in ISIC, which excludes production of compost (treatment of waste) and ship breaking (materials recovery). ANZSIC treats these activities as manufacturing.

#### ISIC Section C activities not in ANZSIC Division C:

- Repair of fabricated metal products, machinery and equipment, depending on the product, maybe classified to ANZSIC Subdivision 94 Repair and Maintenance
- Installation of industrial machinery and equipment will be classified to either ANZSIC Division E Construction or ANZSIC Class 7000 Computer System Design and Related Services
- Engraving for security purposes is classified to ANZSIC Class 7712 *Investigation and Security Services*.

#### ANZSIC Division C activities not in ISIC Section C:

- Ship breaking is classified to ISIC Class 3830 Materials recovery
- Operation of compost dumps is classified to ISIC Class 3821 Treatment and disposal of nonhazardous waste
- Manufacturing and installing construction products are classified to ISIC Section F Construction

#### Repair activities

ANZSIC identifies some equipment repair activities in manufacturing if they are carried out in a similar way to manufacturing the good (e.g. ships, locomotives and aircraft). Other repairs are in Construction or Other services divisions.

ISIC takes the approach that goods can either be capital (business related) or consumer (household) goods. Repair of capital goods (e.g. transport equipment excluding motor vehicles, industrial machinery and equipment) is classified in the ISIC Section C *Manufacturing* and Repair of consumer goods (e.g. footwear and household appliances) is in ISIC Section T *Other service activities*. If the good is both a capital and consumer good (e.g. motor vehicles, computers and printers) its repair is classified to the Section T *Other service activities*.

#### Installation activities

The installation of machinery and equipment, when carried out as a specialized activity, is classified in ISIC class 3320 *Installation of industrial machinery and equipment*. These activities in ANZSIC are mainly in the construction industry except for specialised computer/mainframe installation which belongs in ANZSIC Class 7000 *Computer System Design and Related Services* 

Potential Change to scope of revised ISIC to be discussed if we adopt:

Treatment of Factoryless Goods Producers (FGP) or converters

Units that arrange the manufacture of their products by another unit, paying the sub-contracted unit a commission, are referred to internationally as 'converters' or factoryless goods producers (FGP). In ANZSIC and ISIC rev 4 the criteria to classify converters is:

- units that *own the material inputs* and own the final outputs, but have the production done by others, are classified to the manufacturing division; and
- units that do not own the material inputs but own the final outputs and have the production done by others, are not classified to the manufacturing division. They are classified either as a wholesaler or a retailer.

The units are classified according to the predominant good produced whether they are arranging the manufacturing or carrying out the physical manufacturing.

The ISIC review has agreed the criteria to define FGPs is to be changed as ownership of the material inputs is no longer required, though they do require significant control of the process and ownership of intellectual property. (Criteria still under discussion)

The impact of this change will potentially mean some previously classified wholesaling and retailing units maybe classified in manufacturing. Noting the extent of the shift will be hard to quantify at the moment as these units have not been identified in Australia's economy but they may impact any of the manufacturing classes.

Note: Australia did not agree with the change to the treatment of FGPs when endorsed.

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
C Manufacturing	C Manufacturing
11 Food Product Manufacturing	10 Manufacture of food products
12 Beverage and Tobacco Product	11 Manufacture of beverages
Manufacturing	12 Manufacture of tobacco products
13 Textile, Leather, Clothing and Footwear Manufacturing	13 Manufacture of textiles 14 Manufacture of wearing apparel 15 Manufacture of leather and related products
14 Wood Product Manufacturing	16 Manufacture of wood and of products of wood and cork, except furniture; manufacture of articles of straw and plaiting materials
15 Pulp, Paper and Converted Paper Product Manufacturing	17 Manufacture of paper and paper products
16 Printing (including the Reproduction of Recorded Media)	18 Printing and reproduction of recorded media
17 Petroleum and Coal Product Manufacturing	19 Manufacture of coke and refined petroleum products

18 Basic Chemical and Chemical Product Manufacturing	20 Manufacture of chemicals and chemical products 21 Manufacture of basic pharmaceutical products and pharmaceutical preparations
19 Polymer Product and Rubber Product Manufacturing	22 Manufacture of rubber and plastics products
20 Non-Metallic Mineral Product Manufacturing	23 Manufacture of other non-metallic mineral products
21 Primary Metal and Metal Product Manufacturing	24 Manufacture of basic metals
22 Fabricated Metal Product Manufacturing	25 Manufacture of fabricated metal products, except machinery and equipment
23 Transport Equipment Manufacturing 24 Machinery and Equipment Manufacturing	26 Manufacture of computer, electronic and optical products 27 Manufacture of electrical equipment 28 Manufacture of machinery and equipment n.e.c. 29 Manufacture of motor vehicles, trailers and semi-trailers 30 Manufacture of other transport equipment
25 Furniture and Other Manufacturing	31 Manufacture of furniture 32 Other manufacturing  33 Repair and installation of machinery and equipment

## ANZSIC Division D Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services

ANZSIC Division D *Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services* is split across three sections in ISIC Sections: D *Electricity, Gas, Steam and Air Conditioning Supply*, E *Water Supply; Sewage, Waste Management and Remediation* and H *Transport and Storage*.

Major differences for ISIC in relation to ANZSIC relate to the structure of the classification and the different breakdowns of activities at the one and two digit level.

ISIC Section D and E activities not in ANZSIC Division D:

- Ship breaking is classified to ANZSIC Class 2391 Shipbuilding and Repair Services
- Operation of compost dumps is classified to ANZSIC Class 1831 Fertiliser Manufacturing

ANZSIC Division D activities not in ISIC Section D and E:

• Transportation of water by pipeline is classified to ISIC Class 4930 Transport via pipeline

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
D Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services	D Electricity, Gas, Steam and Air Conditioning
	Supply
26 Electricity Supply	35 Electricity, gas, steam, and air conditioning
27 Gas Supply	supply
	E Water Supply; Sewage, Waste Management
	and Remediation
28 Water Supply, Sewerage and Drainage	36 Water collection, treatment, and supply
Services	37 Sewerage
29 Waste Collection, Treatment and Disposal	38 Waste collection, treatment, and disposal
Services	activities; materials recovery

#### ANZSIC Division E Construction

ANZSIC Division E *Construction* is mainly in ISIC Section F *Construction*.

Differences for ISIC in relation to ANZSIC relate to the structure of the classification. Other differences relate to installation of machinery and equipment, land subdivision and landscape care.

ISIC Section F activities not in ANZSIC Division E:

- Manufacturing and installing construction materials is classified to relevant classes in ANZSIC Division C Manufacturing
- Cleaning of new buildings after construction is classified to ANZSIC Class 7311 *Building and Other Industrial Cleaning Services*
- Maintenance and repair of equipment like escalators is classified to ANZSIC Class 9429 Other Machinery and Equipment Repair and Maintenance

#### ANZSIC Division E activities not in ISIC Section F:

- Installation of machinery and equipment is classified to ISIC Class 3320 Installation of industrial machinery and equipment
- Subdividing real estate into lots, without land improvement is classified to ISIC Class 6810 Real estate activities with own or leased property
- Landscape care and maintenance is classified to ISIC Class 8130 Landscape care and maintenance service activities

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
E Construction	F Construction
30 Building Construction	41 Construction of buildings
31 Heavy and Civil Engineering Construction	42 Civil engineering
32 Construction Services	43 Specialized construction activities

#### ANZSIC Division F Wholesale trade

ANZSIC Division F *Wholesale trade* is contained within ISIC Section G *Wholesale and Retail trade* – ISIC Division 46 *Wholesale trade*, noting some units may move to manufacturing if the FGP treatment is adopted.

Differences for ISIC in relation to ANZSIC relate to the structure of the classification. At the highest level, ISIC combines Wholesale and Retail trade at the section level and the distinction is made at the two digit level. Other differences relate to the groupings of activities and number of classes with ANZSIC having more detail.

ANZSIC Division F activities not in ISIC Section G:

- Auction houses (retail) are classified in ISIC class 4774 Retail sale of second-hand goods
- Independent Auctioneers are classified to ISIC class 8299 Other business support service activities n.e.c.

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
E Wholesale Trade	<b>G Wholesale and Retail Trade</b> 46 Wholesale trade
33 Basic Material Wholesaling 34 Machinery and Equipment Wholesaling 35 Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle Parts Wholesaling 36 Grocery, Liquor and Tobacco Product Wholesaling 37 Other Goods Wholesaling 38 Commission-Based Wholesaling	461 Wholesale on a fee or contract basis 462 Wholesale of agricultural raw materials and live animals 463 Wholesale of food, beverages, and tobacco 464 Wholesale of household goods (change in scope to include office furniture) 465 Wholesale of machinery, equipment, and supplies (change in scope to exclude office furniture) 466 Wholesale of motor vehicles, motorcycles and related parts and accessories 467 Other specialized wholesale 469 Non-specialized wholesale trade

#### ANZSIC Division G Retail

ANZSIC Division G *Retail trade* is contained within ISIC Section G *Wholesale and Retail trade* - ISIC Division 47 *Retail trade*.

Differences for ISIC in relation to ANZSIC relate to the structure of the classification. ISIC combines Wholesale and Retail trade at the section level and the distinction is made at the two digit ISIC division level. Other differences relate to the groupings of activities and number of classes with ANZSIC having more detail.

The major difference is sales channels are not a classification criterion in ISIC. Internet, direct marketing, vending machines, food van or market stall sales etc. (i.e. non-store based retailing) are classified with the corresponding store based sales.

ISIC Section G activities not in ANZSIC Division G:

Auction Houses are classified in ANZSIC Class 3800 Commission-Based Wholesaling

ANZSIC Division G activities not in ISIC Section G:

• Pawn brokers are classified in ISIC Class 6492 Other credit granting

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
F Retail Trade	G Wholesale and Retail Trade
	47 Retail trade
39 Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle Parts	471 Retail sale in non-specialized stores
Retailing	472 Retail sale of food, beverages and tobacco
40 Fuel Retailing	in specialized stores
41 Food Retailing	473 Retail sale of automotive fuel in specialized
42 Other Store-Based Retailing	stores
43 Non-Store Retailing and Retail Commission-	474 Retail sale of information and
Based Buying and/or Selling	communications equipment in specialized
	stores
	475 Retail sale of other household equipment
	in specialized stores
	476 Retail sale of cultural and recreation goods
	in specialized stores
	477 Retail sale of other goods in specialized
	stores
	478 Retail sale of motor vehicles, motorcycles
	and related parts and accessories
	479 Intermediation services <sup>1</sup> for retail trade

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Non-financial intermediation service activities are activities that facilitate transactions between buyers and sellers for the ordering and/or delivering of goods and services for a fee or commission, without supplying and taking ownership of the goods and services that are intermediated. These activities can be carried out on digital platforms or through non-digital channels. The fee or commission can be received directly from either the buyers or sellers, or revenues for intermediation activities can include other sources of income, such as third-party revenues from advertising.

#### ANZSIC Division H Accommodation and Food services

ANZSIC Division H *Accommodation and Food services* is contained in ISIC Section I Accommodation and food service. The differences being the breakdown of activities and has the addition of *intermediation services*<sup>1</sup> *for accommodation* (ISIC Group 559) and *food services* (ISIC Group 569)

ISIC Section I activities not in ANZSIC Division H:

 Meals on wheels as a food service is classified in ANZSIC Class 8790 Other Social Assistance Services

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
H Accommodation and Food Services	I Accommodation and food service activities
44 Accommodation 45 Food and Beverage Services	55 Accommodation 56 Food and beverage service activities

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Non-financial intermediation service activities are activities that facilitate transactions between buyers and sellers for the ordering and/or delivering of goods and services for a fee or commission, without supplying and taking ownership of the goods and services that are intermediated. These activities can be carried out on digital platforms or through non-digital channels. The fee or commission can be received directly from either the buyers or sellers, or revenues for intermediation activities can include other sources of income, such as third-party revenues from advertising.

## ANZSIC Division I Transport, Postal and Warehousing

ANZSIC Division I *Transport, Postal and Warehousing* is mainly contained in ISIC Section H *Transportation and storage* with main difference being the structure and not separate identification of scenic and sightseeing activities. Intermediary services<sup>1.</sup> have been separated for passenger transport (ISIC Group 523), freight transport (ISIC Group 523) and postal and courier activities (ISIC Group 533).

#### ISIC Section H activities not in ANZSIC Division I:

• The treatment of liquification of natural gas (not at mine site) for transportation. ANZSIC treats LNG production as mining activity in ANZSIC Class 700 *Oil and Gas Extraction* while ISIC classifies it in ISIC Class 5221 *Service activities incidental to land transportation*.

#### ANZSIC Division I activities not in ISIC Section H:

- Mailbox rental is classified in ISIC Class 8219 Photocopying, document preparation and other specialized office support activities
- Separate identification of intermediation services<sup>1</sup> for passenger transport (ISIC Group 523), freight transport (ISIC Group 523) and postal and courier activities (ISIC Group 533) a.

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
I Transport, Postal and Warehousing	H Transportation and storage
46 Road Transport 47 Rail Transport	49 Land transport and transport via pipelines
48 Water Transport 49 Air and Space Transport 50 Other Transport 51 Postal and Courier Pick-up and Delivery Services 52 Transport Support Services 53 Warehousing and Storage Services	50 Water transport 51 Air transport 52 Warehousing and support activities for transportation 53 Postal and courier activities

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Non-financial intermediation service activities are activities that facilitate transactions between buyers and sellers for the ordering and/or delivering of goods and services for a fee or commission, without supplying and taking ownership of the goods and services that are intermediated. These activities can be carried out on digital platforms or through non-digital channels. The fee or commission can be received directly from either the buyers or sellers, or revenues for intermediation activities can include other sources of income, such as third-party revenues from advertising.

#### ANZSIC Division J Information Media and Telecommunications

ANZSIC Division J Information Media and Telecommunications is mainly contained in ISIC Sections J Publishing, broadcasting, and content production and distribution activities and K Telecommunications, computer programming, consultancy, computing infrastructure, and other information service activities with main difference being the structure. ISIC includes computer system design, software development and related services, has no separate internet publishing broadcasting activities, has less detail in telecommunications and more detail in software publishing and development activities (Software development and Software publishing separate video game related services) and Internet service providers are treated as telecommunication providers.

#### ISIC Section J or K activities not in ANZSIC Division K:

 Section K (Subdivision 62 and 63) includes the activities of computer system design, software development and related services which is classified in ANZSIC Division M *Professional*, Scientific and Technical Services in Class 7000 Computer system design and related services

#### ANZSIC Division J activities not in ISIC Section J or K:

- Libraries and Archives classified in ISIC Class 9101 Library and archives activities
- Microfiche and microfilm recording and imaging is classified with ISIC Class 7420 *Photographic activities.*

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
J Information Media and Telecommunications	J Publishing, broadcasting, and content
	production and distribution activities
54 Publishing (except Internet and Music Publishing) 55 Motion Picture and Sound Recording Activities 56 Broadcasting (except Internet) 57 Internet Publishing and Broadcasting	58 Publishing activities 59 Motion picture, video and television programme production, sound recording and music publishing activities 60 Programming, broadcasting, news agency and other content distribution activities.
58 Telecommunications Services 59 Internet Service Providers, Web Search Portals and Data Processing Services 60 Library and Other Information Services	K Telecommunications, computer programming, consultancy, computing infrastructure, and other information service activities 61 Telecommunication 62 Computer programming, consultancy and related activities 63 Computing infrastructure, data processing, hosting and other information service activities.

## ANZSIC Division K Finance and Insurance Services

ANZSIC Division K *Finance and Insurance Services* is mainly contained in ISIC Sections L (previously K) *Financial and insurance activities*. The significant differences in the structure relate to Australia's financial reporting requirements and the extra detail in ISIC at the four-digit level.

ISIC Section L activities not in ANZSIC Division K:

- Pawnshops and pawnbrokers are classified in ANZSIC Class 4273 Antique and Used Good Retailing
- Business brokerage services i.e. arranging for the purchase and sale of businesses but not including real estate brokerage – trading mortgages and equity are included in ISIC Class 7490 Other professional, scientific and technical activities n.e.c.

#### ANZSIC Division K activities not in ISIC Section L:

 Compulsory social security activities are included in ISIC Section O Public administration and defence; compulsory social security

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
K Finance and Insurance Services	L Financial and insurance activities
64 Finance 65 Insurance and superannuation funds 66 Auxiliary finance and insurance services	64 Financial service activities, except insurance and pension funding 65 Insurance, reinsurance and pension funding, except compulsory social security 66 Activities auxiliary to financial service and insurance activities

## ANZSIC Division L Renting, Hiring and Real Estate Services

ANZSIC Division L Renting, Hiring and Real Estate Services is split across ISIC Sections:

- M Real estate activities
- N Administrative and support service activities Division 77 Rental and leasing activities for non-real estate related renting

There are also several structural differences within these sections

ANZSIC Division L activities not in ISIC Section M or N:

- Subdividing real estate (land) into lots is classified as construction in ANZSIC
- Property management for body Corporate and Strata Plan i.e. provision of a combination of support services within a client's facility are treated as real estate activities in ANZSIC and have their own class in ISIC Class 8110 Combined facilities support activities

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
L Renting, Hiring and Real Estate Services	M Real estate activities
66 Rental and Hiring Services (except Real Estate)	68 Real estate activities
67 Property Operators and Real Estate Services	N Administrative and support service activities
	77 Rental and leasing activities

## ANZSIC Division M Professional, Scientific and Technical Services

ANZSIC Division M *Professional, Scientific and Technical Services* is split across multiple ISIC Sections mainly relating to treatment of specific services but is mainly contained in N (previously M) Professional, scientific and technical activities. Scope differences being:

- Forest management consulting services is classified in ISIC Section A *Agriculture, forestry* and fishing under 02 Forestry and logging
- Activities classified under ANZSIC Subdivision 70 Computer System Design and Related Services is classified under ISIC Section K Telecommunications, computer programming, consultancy, computing infrastructure, and other information service under Divisions 62 Computer programming, consultancy and related activities and 63 Computing infrastructure, data processing, hosting and other information service activities except for installation services which are classified under ISIC Class 3320 Installation of industrial machinery and equipment
- Personal management is classified in ISIC Section O (previously N) Administrative and support service activities under ISIC Division 78 Employment activities
- National Statistical Offices e.g. ABS is classified in ISIC Section P (previously O) Public administration and defence; compulsory social security under ISIC Class 8411 General public administration activities
- Photo booths is classified in ISIC Section T (previously) S Other service activities under ISIC Division 96 Other personal service activities

There are also several structural differences within these sections

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
M Professional, Scientific and Technical	M Professional, scientific and technical
Services	activities
69 Professional, Scientific and Technical	69 Legal and accounting activities
Services (Except Computer System Design and	70 Activities of head offices; management
Related Services)	consultancy activities
	71 Architectural and engineering activities;
	technical testing and analysis
	72 Scientific research and development
	73 Advertising and market research
	74 Other professional, scientific and technical
	activities
	75 Veterinary activities
	K - Telecommunications, computer
	programming, consultancy, computing
	infrastructure, and other information service
70 Computer System Design and Related	62 Computer programming, consultancy and
Services	related activities
(in different ISIC section)	63 Computing infrastructure, data processing,
	hosting and other information service activities

## ANZSIC Division N Administrative and Support Services

ANZSIC Division N *Administrative and Support Services* is mainly contained in ISIC Section O (previously N) *Administrative and support service activities* except for some scope differences. The other major difference is ISIC Section O contains *Renting, hiring and leasing activities other than real estate* which is contained in ANZSIC Division L. There are also other structural differences.

#### ISIC Section O activities not in ANZSIC Division N:

- Some landscape care maintenance activities are classified in ANZSIC Class 3291 *Landscape Construction Services*
- Security and investigation activities are classified in ANZSIC Class 7712 Investigation and Security Services

#### ANZSIC Division N activities not in ISIC Section O:

- Casting agents are classified to ISIC Class 7490 Other professional, scientific and technical activities n.e.c.
- Operation of facilities and provision of services to meet the cultural and entertainment interests i.e. event management, promotion of arts etc. are classified to ISIC Class 9000 Creative, arts and entertainment activities
- Activities of producers or promoters of sports events, with or without facilities are classified to ISIC Class 9319 Other sports activities
- Activities of producers or entrepreneurs of live events other than arts or sports events, with or without facilities are classified to ISIC Class 9329 Other amusement and recreation activities n.e.c.
- Cleaning of new buildings after construction are classified to ISIC Class 4330 Building completion and finishing

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
N Administrative and Support Services	O Administrative and support service activities
	77 Rental and leasing activities
72 Administrative Services	78 Employment activities 79 Travel agency, tour operator, reservation service and related activities
73 Building Cleaning, Pest Control and Other Support Services	80 Security and investigation activities 81 Services to buildings and landscape activities
	82 Office administrative, office support and other business support activities

## ANZSIC Division O Public Administration and Safety

ANZSIC Division O *Public Administration and Safety* is mainly contained in ISIC Section P (previously O) *Public administration and defence; compulsory social security* except for scope differences. The major differences are structurally, Australia's system of government i.e. federal, state and local, regulatory and judicial are not represented and ISIC includes compulsory social security.

ISIC Section P activities not in ANZSIC Division O:

- Compulsory social security is classified to ANZSIC Division K *Finance* and separated depending on whether the fund or administrator is classified
- National Statistical Offices is classified ANZSIC Class 6950 Market Research and Statistical Services

#### ANZSIC Division O activities not in ISIC Section P:

- Foreign Government Representation is classified to ISIC Class 9900 Activities of extraterritorial organizations and bodies
- Engraving of personal precious and non-precious metal products for security purposes is classified to ISIC Class 3211 *Manufacture of jewellery and related articles*
- Forestry fire-protection and fire-fighting services is classified to ISIC Class 0240 Support services to forestry
- Oil and gas field firefighting is classified to ISIC Class 0910 Support activities for petroleum and natural gas extraction
- Firefighting and fire-prevention services at airports provided by non-specialized units is classified to ISIC Class 5223 Service activities incidental to air transportation
- Certification (testing) of products is classified to ISIC Class 7120 Technical testing and analysis

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
O Public Administration and Safety	P Public administration and defence; compulsory social security
75 Public Administration 76 Defence 77 Public Order, Safety and Regulatory Services	84 Public administration and defence; compulsory social security  841 Administration of the State and the economic and social policy of the community 842 Provision of services to the community as a whole 843 Compulsory social security activities

## ANZSIC Division P Education and Training

ANZSIC Division P *Education and Training* is mainly contained in ISIC Section Q (previously P) *Education* except for structural and terminology differences.

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
P Education and Training	Q Education
80 Preschool and School Education 81 Tertiary Education 82 Adult, Community and Other Education	85 Education 851 Pre-primary and primary education 852 Secondary education 853 Higher education 854 Other education 855 Educational support activities

### ANZSIC Division Q Health Care and Social Assistance

ANZSIC Division Q *Health Care and Social Assistance* is mainly contained in ISIC Section R (previously Q) *Human health and social work activities*. ANZSIC has a more detailed breakdown.

ISIC Section S activities not in ANZSIC Division R:

Reformatories are in ANZSIC Class 7714 Correctional and Detention Services.

ANZSIC Division Q activities not in ISIC Section R:

Soup kitchens and organisations like meals on wheels that provide assistance to disadvantaged. ANZSIC treats them as a social service while ISIC treats them as a food service.

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
Q Health Care and Social Assistance	R Human health and social work activities
84 Hospitals 85 Medical and Other Health Care Services 86 Residential Care Services 87 Social Assistance Services	86 Human health activities 87 Residential care activities 88 Social work activities without accommodation

#### ANZSIC Division R Arts and Recreation Services

ANZSIC Division R *Arts and Recreation Services* is mainly contained in ISIC Section S (previously R) *Arts, entertainment, and recreation*.

ISIC Section S activities not in ANZSIC Division R:

- Production and promotion of events or exhibits (including sporting events) intended for public viewing which are in ANZSIC Class 7299 Other Administrative Services n.e.c.
- Artwork restoration which is in ANZSIC Class 9499 Other Repair and Maintenance n.e.c.
- Libraries which are in ANZSIC Class 6010 Libraries and Archives.
- ANZSIC provides more detail in relation to Gambling activities.

ANZSIC Division R activities not in ISIC Section S:

• Activities of photojournalists is classified to ISIC Class 7420 Photographic activities.

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
R Arts and Recreation Services	S Arts, entertainment, and recreation
89 Heritage Activities 90 Creative and Performing Arts Activities 91 Sports and Recreation Activities 92 Gambling Activities	90 Creative, arts and entertainment activities 91 Libraries, archives, museums, and other cultural activities 92 Gambling and betting activities 93 Sports activities and amusement and recreation activities

#### ANZSIC Division S Other Services

ANZSIC Division S *Other Services* is mainly contained in ISIC Section T (previously S) *Other Service Activities*.

ISIC Section T activities not in ANZSIC Division S:

• operation of photo booths is classified to ANZSIC Class 6991 *Professional Photographic Services*.

ANZSIC Division S activities not in ISIC Section T:

- Roadside assistance carrying of mechanical repairs to motor vehicles is classified to ISIC Class
   5221 Service activities incidental to land transportation
- Repair of fabricated metal products, machinery electronic and optical equipment, electrical equipment, transport equipment, except motor vehicles and other equipment is classified to ISIC Group 331 Repair of fabricated metal products, machinery, and equipment
- Maintenance and repair of machinery and equipment n.e.c. associated with construction activities (capital only e.g., elevator maintenance) which is classified to ISIC Class 4329 *Other construction installation*
- Film processing which is classified to ISIC Class 7420 Photographic activities

ANZSIC 2006	Revised ISIC
S Other services	T Other service activities
94 Repair and Maintenance 95 Personal and Other Services	94 Activities of membership organizations 95 Repair and maintenance of computers, personal and household goods, and motor vehicles and motorcycles 96 Other personal service activities